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(United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, D.C. 20555),
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Regulatory Commission.
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C&aym Ollinois @ 782-5087



24

168

ALSO PRESENT (CONTINUED):

MR. EUGENE J. GALLAGHER,
Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

REPORTED BY: ANTOINETTE M. HAYNES, C.S.R.
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JAMES GEORGE KEPPLER,
called as a witness herein, having been previously duly
sworn and having testified, was examined and testified
further as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q Okay. Mr. Keppler, you understand that you

are still under ocath from last time and sworn to tell

the truth?

A Yes.

Qe With .egard to the March 22, 1979
investigztive report, 78-20, there were groups of
infractions or noncompliances, and there were nine such
groups, I believe; and I was wondering if you can tell
us if there is any scheme or guideline for grouping
certain things, for example, as to why there were nine
infractions or noncompiiances as opposed to three or
four or twenty,

A May I see the report, please?

Q I am louking for a clean copy of it right
now.

I will give you my marked up ==
A That's all right. Maybe I can answer the

question in a general way, what our policy is on this.

(Méﬂ&.¢pﬁbuu¢hq’ and Hssociates
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Q Let me let you look at this, first.
(WHEREUPON, the document was tendered
to the witness.)

BY THE WITNESS:

A Where are they?
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Qe There were none presented in there?

Okay. You may need one othe. document. Let
me show you the December 6th order. And what the
question really is is with regard to the information
and the findings in =--

MR. ZAMARIN: Let us go off the record a minute.
(WHEREUPON, discussion was had
off the record.)

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q If you could simply explain, then, what the
policy is with regard to grouping of items or how they
are either joined or separated out to make separate
instances of infractions or noncompliances.

S First of all, let me ask, are you aware of

the categorization of the items of noncompliance and

the basis for that ==~
Q No.

A -=- whether they're called violations,

("60& cdanud&ug and Hssociates
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infractions, or deficiencies?

Q Why don't you describe that?

A Okay. Prior to September, 1980, the NRC's
enforcement policy required that items of noncompliance
be categorized according to their safety importance,
and three categories were identified. These were
vicolations, infractions, and deficiencies.

A vio.iation was an item of noncompliance that
had direct safety consequences. An infraction was an
item of nocacompliance which, if left uncorrected,
might lead to a potential safety problem. And a
deficiency was an item of noncompliance with relatively
minor safety significance.

You can see from that set of definitions that
an infraction category was a rather broad category that
covered a rather broad spectrum of importance and was
one of the reasons why we modified our enforcement
policy most recently.

Now, in determ’.ing actial numbers of items
of noncompliance, what we tried to do was to look at a
basic requirement, and violations of that requirement
represented an item of noncompliance. And if there
were multiple examples of that same basic requirement,

then these were treated, or are treated, generally as

(Wéﬁﬁ,‘c&%uudhgg and Hsscciates
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examples of an item of noncompliance, and they're not
additive,

For purposes of consideration where items of
noncompliance are allowed to occur over periodsof times,
the law did provide for considering each d-.y that that
item of noncompliance existed as a separate item of
nonccempliance. However, our practice was that only for
the more egregious “vnesof problems did we use that
approach.

Does that he.p?

e I chirk so. And I understand the principle.
And, actually, when I look at Arpendix A to the
Pecember 6th order, I can now see where the four
numbered items are referenced, at least to different
provisions in 10 CFR, Pa:t 50.

A Different criteria.

Q Although, if one does not 'ook specificelly
to those criteria, they appear to crerlap: so the
basis for it, then, is not that they constitute
actually independent actions, but that they are
referenced by separate criteria, is that right?

A Different requirements, yes.

Q In Appeniix A on Item No. 3, there is a

statement that:

‘1@64&,‘:&%mudhﬁg and Hssociates
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"CPCo Topical Report CPC 1-A, Policy No. 10,
Section 3.1, speaks, in part, that 'work
activities are accomplished according to approved
procedures or instructions which include
inspection hold points beyond which work does not
proceed until the inspection is complete or
written consent for bypassing the inspection has
been received --'" et cetera.

Would your understanding of that language be
that hold points would Le effective for all work
activities?

MR. ZAMARIN: Read the gquestion.
(WHEREUPON, the record was read
by the reporter as requested.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A As I read this piece of paper, my
interpretation would be that it would cover those work
activities covered by CPCo Topical Report CPC 1l=-A.

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

[} And all of those without exception, is that
right?

A All of those that are safety-related.

Q In your opinion would it constitute bad

management attitude toward quality assurance if a

‘1@60% ¢Janun5ug and cﬁhuauahu
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licensee should disagree with the judgment of an N2C
Region 3 inspector with regard to a certain item?

A No.

Q And in your opinion would it demonstrate bad
management attitude if a licensee in a situation where
there was a difference of opinion, for example, as to
vhether a material should be Q-listed or not to check
with its IE to find the design basis for it and to
attempt to resolve that matter and present its position
to the NRC inJdpector in an effort to, perhaps, persuade
the inspector that perhaps they are right and he might
be wrong?

A No.

e At the SALP board meeting =-- I guess I have
heard it referred to -- where input was received from
the various inspectors with regard to Midland, do ycu
know whether Ron Cook nad any input?

A . believe that the SALP report shows who the
hoard was comprised of. And I can't answer without
looking at that.

But the list of members were on there, and i
would certainly believe he was.

Q I take it, then, since you cannot recall

whether he was on there, tha* you (o not recall what

‘W%d%g c&%umﬁuy and Fssociates
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precise input, if any, he had.

A I 4id not attend the SALP board meeting. I
was only briefed afterwards of the board's finding.
And that has been the practice on all SALP meetings.

Q By whom were you briefed?

A Mr. Fiorelli was present, Mr. Knop was
present, I believe Mr. Gallagher was present, and others
were present.

Q When you say you were briefed on the board
findings, did the board take input from other
individuals and reach conclusicons, or did you refer to
findings simply as the mass of inputs?

A Basically what they come to me with is a
draft SALP report to work with and let me see it and
see if I have any major problems with it. :

Q And were you provided a draft SALP report in

this instance?
A Yes.
Q Do you have any idea where ~-- strike that.

Do you know whether that draft would have

been retained after a final was produced?
A I don't know. You'd have to ask
Mr. Fiorelli or Mr. Knop. My guess is probably not.

Simply, it was a working paper to talk from.

(WQQi cﬁ%umﬁug and Hssociates
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It wasn't a full report. It was the sum and substance
of the report, listing the items of noncompliance anc
the reportable events on the kinds of things that are
in there.

Q You refer to a "SALP report." Is that the
same as -- all I have seen that even suggested that it
might be a SALP report is a summary of a meeting of
some date, and I do not recall when it was =-- of
November 24, 1980,

Is that the SALP report to which you refer?
And I have a copy here that I will =-- here
let me see if I can =--

A You want me to get mine?

Q No. That is okay. What I will do is see if
you can tell without looking at the cove.  sheet.

A I'll tell you what I'11l do. 1I'll get mine.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)

MR. ZAMARIN: Off the record.

(WHEREUPON, discussion was had

off the record.)

(WHEREUPON, a certain document was
marked CPCo Deposition Exhibit No. 8,

for identification, as of 1/16/81.)

Wolfe, <Rosenberg and HAssociates
Chicago, Jllinois ® 782-8087
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BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q + am marking No. 8, a letter dated
December 18, 1980, to Consumers Power Company, a
two-page letter over the signature of James G. Keppler.
And there are two enclosures to that, inspection
reports 50-329/80~-35, 50-330/80-36, as well as what is
referred to as a Licensee Performance Evaluation
(construction), or a SALP appraisal, which is an
attachment to those two referenced inspection reports.

Mr. Keppler, is this document that I have

marked as Exhibit 8 what you refer to as the "SALP

report"?
A Ves.
Qe I notice on the very last page there is xind

of a chart, and it has "Functional Area" and then 13
items listed. And there are some x's, and one of the
line items, No. 13, "Reporting,” does not have an x.

Do you know why or where an x would go if one

were to be put on there?

(WHEREUPON, the document was tendered
to the witness.)

BY THE WITNESS:

A I'm assuming it's an oversight. I did not

notice this before. But it would go in "No Change."

1@64& ¢d§humﬁug and Hssociates
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BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q Okay. I also notice on the first page of
the inspection reports down at the bottom, it has
"Meeting Summary" and then "Results."

Do you see that?

A Yes.

Q And it states that "The performance at
Midland Unit 1 and 2 was considered to be adequate.”

A Yes. .

Q I have seen other reports that have used
both the term "adequate" and also "average."

Is there any difference in your mind to
saying that the performance was average or the
performance was adequate?

A I don't believe I've seen one marked average.

Q I have got one here. I have a report with
respect to == I do not need to identify it =-- with
respect to another plant and another utility, and I
will just show you that.

MR. JONES: You are speaking of the Midland Plant?

MR. ZAMARIN: This is a different plant and
different utility where -~

MR. JONES: I thought you said you saw the Midlaad!

Plant referred tu as both average and adequate.

(WGQE cﬁ%umﬁrg anJ‘s4uodah4
Chicago, JMlinois ® 782.8087
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MR. ZAMARIN: I am sorry. I did not mean to
confuse you.
BY THE WITNESS:
| A There is no intended difference. I guess I
would like to elaborate and say that the SALP
appraisal program was instituted this last year as a
means for the Commission to set back away from the
day-to-day activities and conduct some kind of a
meaningful assessment of the licensee's regulatory
performance with the idea of identifying those
performers that are very strong either in terms of
their outstanding regulatory performance or in terms of
their weak regulatory performance and to identify areas
that need attention.

And the process has been an evolving type of
process, but one which I viewed as being ~-- as trying
to give as much meaningful information to the licensee
as possible. If you look at the appraisals that we
have done on operating reactors, you'll find that I
have used terms like "above average,” "below average,"
and "average" throughout the various areas that we
in. pect.

However, I felt, at this point in time,

anyway, -eluctant to try to give an overall grade,

(Wéai <ﬁauudhﬁg and Hssociates
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simplvy because I didn't feel I knew what weight to
apply to each area. The construction program has been
a little bit more difficult for me to do
self-appraisals on, because there are noct as many areas
and regulatory reguirements that one can get your
teeth into as well, so to speak.

And I feel that in many ways the
self-appraisals in the construction program have been
a little bit on the bland side., And I fesl we have got
to -- we will be making eiforts to upgrade our
self-appraisals in the construction program, but,
generally, I did not intend any overall ranking of
utilities. But I did try to list those areas where I
could =-- that I felt they were strong or weak in.

Does that helpn:
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

e Yes. I also notice that on Page 2 of the
inspection report to which _he SALP evaluation is
enclosed there is a particularization of significant
problems. And I believe that flows from Subparagraph ¢
where it says, "however, some problems persist."

Do you see, then, in 4 it says, "These

significant problems --" I am sorry.

In Subparagraph d on Page 2, it says, "These

(WGQQ,1=&%aud§@5 and Hssociates
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significant problems were identified during the
evaluation periocd.”

There are three reactor pedestal anchor bolts
which probably originated in 1973, qualification of
inspectors for containment post tensicning work, and
the Zack HVAC activities.

And, to your knowledge, were those the only
three significant problems that were identified during
the SALP evaluation period?

A Yes.

o) And with regard to the qualification of QC
inspectors for containment post tensioning work, are
you familiar with the actual details of what that
involved?

A Not really. I recall that there were some
problems with the company on that, but I was not
present in any cf the meetings, that I recall.

Q Do you recall that being a matter of whether--
a disagreement, I guess, between the Region 3
inspector and the licensce as to whether individuals
were exemptecd from a certain ANSI education and
experience provision by virtue of training and

ecperience or =--

A What youv say is familiar, but I don't recall

(MGQQ cf&uud&qg and cﬁkunﬁﬂia
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the details at all.
(WHEREUPON, discuassion was had
off the record.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q when you were briefed on the SALP board

meeting, were vecu provided with any written materials?

A Just the draft of the ~--

¢ O0f the report?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Were you provided with a description

of specific input by individual inspectors?

A No.

Q Okay. So, for example, nobody said that Gene
Gallagher has a certain position with regard to
attituds with respect to compliance, and he based it
upon ==

A Let me -- I guess I tock your questipn
narrowly.

When I was briefed on the SALP appraisal, I
was made aware at that time that Mr. Gallagher and
Mr. Naidu had concerns about the quality assurance
program, the revised quality assurance program that we
discussed at our last session. And it was at that time

that I made that dec’i-zion that since we are geing to

(Méq% cfauudhqg and Hssociates
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have a meeting with a company, I don't want to be in a
position of not bringing up these issues, and we'll
break up the meeting into two parts.

So I became aware of it. I was not given any
memos or particular correspondence at that time to =--
it was all verbal discussions.

Q Okay. Actually, it was not with regard to
that that I was thinking.

For example, I noted that we received at
Mr. Gallagher's deposition a copy of his memorandun
which had been styled to refer to as his SALP input
memnorandum, and it has six different categories. And
what I had in mind was whether, for example, it was
his opinion that the licensee and the contractor had
a poor attitude in compliance, that that in particular
would have been related to -- someone would have said
that GCene Gallagher thinks that they have got a poor
attitude in compliance.

S Well, I don't recall all the discussions
that went on, but we certainly had a fairly lengthy
session on things. I did not see Mr. Gallagher's
memo until the day before you were coming in last time.

I'm sure that some of the .naterial was discussed.

We sat and talked about Midland for probably

(ani cfauudhqg and Hssociates
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an hour that day, and -- but I don't know necessarily
that =- I guess I don't recall specifically belaboring
any specific comments on it. I guess I was more taken
up with the concern that I was hearing for the first
time that we were uncomfortable with the revised QA
orqaniz;tion. and I felt very at:éngly that we ought to
get that information before the licensee as soon as
possible.

Q Have you read Gene Gallagher's deposition

transcript from his deposition?

l No.
Q Dc you plan to read it?
A Probably not. I guess if I get a signal

that I ought to read it I probably will, but I haven't
gotten a signal that I probably ought to read it yet.
Qe Okay.

A I've nad enough other preblems to keep me

busy right now,.

Q Okay.
A For that matter, I haven't read anybody's
depositions,

Q The reason I asked that is that we had gone
through each of the six items in Mr. Gallagher's SALP

input with Mr. Gallagher at his deposition and asked

(MGQi ¢fauudhqg and cﬁh«n&d&s
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for the basis for some of the conclusions stated
therein, which is information that I think you ought
to be aware of.

So you know who the signals come from, I
think you ought to read his transcript. I thought I
should go thtougﬁ these with you if you had not had an
opportunity to read his transcript.

In your opinion would a situation -- strike
that.

Are you familiar with the situation where
|Mr. Gallagher had requested the Question 23 closeout
packets be taken to the site for his review from Ann
Arbor?

A Something sticks in the back of my mind that
I heard about it, but I don't recall involving myself
in any way.

Q Okay. Mr. Gallagher had recuested that the
Question 23 closeout packets be brought to the site
for his review, and at least one of the reasons stated
for that in a telephone conversation to Consumers QA
Fersonnel was that going into Ann Arbor required a
certain amount of pPaperwork, because it was like going
into a vendor. And this request to have the packets

brought to the site was referred to Consumers

("GQQ,qd?bum&ug and Hssociates
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manage.xent, and they decided that they ought not to be
brought to the site, because they were Bechtel
Engineering documents and, in fact, were kept at Bechtel
Engineering, where all the backup for them was.
Would you consider that reluctance to bring
those closeout packets to the site evidence of a poor
attitude of compliance on the part of Consumers?
A Based on the way you described it, I wouldn't
consider it a significant matter, noc.
(WHEREUPON, discussion was had
off the record between the witness and
Mr. Gallagher outside the hearing of
counsel and the court reporter.)

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Qe I cannot resist asking what Mr. Gallagher
just told you.

A He just reminded me that they did go to Ann
Arbor and did the inspection.

Q That is correct, and that was, in fact, prior
to the completion of Mr. Gallagher's deposition, and --
that is right. He indicated that he had gone and, 7
believe, Mr. Gilray was there, also, and they had done
that.

MR. ZAMARIN: Off the record.

(WGQQ ¢Jﬂn¢n&u§ and —Hssociates
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(WEEREUPON, discussion was had
off the record.)
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY THE WITNESS:
N Go ahead. I'm listening.
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q Okay. When you were briefed on the .SALP
board findings, do you recall any qualifications that
were provided with regard to Mr, Gallagher's input, and
that is either the particular items upon which he based
his conclusions in his memorandum or the time frame
for those items or anything of that nature?

A The only thing I recall is that when we sat
down and discussed the concerns by Mr. Gallagher and
Mr. Naidu and they were brought to my attention by
Mr. Fiorelli in an opening presentation to me, he made
the point rigit then that these c¢oncerns have manifested
themselves outuide of the SALP appraisal reriod.

And my reaction to that was that I didn't
care in terms of -- the SALP appraisal was one thing
that had to be dealt with, and we would do that. But
I felt very strongly that it was ~-- if our people had

some concerns about the company's QA prograr and the

‘1@64&,.5&%sud§g9 and cﬁk&mﬁaﬁu
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company had not teen made aware of these concerns,
that I wanted them up front as early as possible so that
they could be dealt with.

Q What I an driving at, and I will give you
some exaﬁples out ¢f Exhibit 2 from Mr.-Gallaghet's
deposition, were y»ou aware, fcr example, that where
the statement was made -- and this is the document that
you indicated you reviewed just prior to the first
session of your deposition =-- that:

"CPCo in conjunction with their contractor
has a poor attitude in compliance. 1In addition,

CPCo has been reluctant to give the NRC requested

documents without first clearing it with upper

CPCo management. This has been considered as an

inhibiting factor in our inspection program.,"”

Were you aware that the sole basis for that
input was this request for the Question 23 closeout
packets not being taken to the site?

A At the time that I was briefed on the SALP
appraisal, I did not have a lot of time, and the
briefing did not last a long time.

What it really focused on was -- we spent
very little time on the SALP appraisal itself. As I

mentioned earlier, it was somewhat nonsensational one

(uéqi,ciauudhqg and <Hssociates
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way or the other.

And when I learned about the new problems or
became avare that we had additional concerns in the
quality assurance, I believe my reaction at the time
was, “"Look, I want a meeting set up with Consumers as
soon as possible. Let's tie it into the SALP meeting."

And for other reasons which were primarily
related to my schedule, I said, "Let's do the
Palisades and Big Rock SALP at the same “ime if we can
and get on with it."

And I didn't go into any details of the
things at that time, so =-- and you were present at the
SALP meeting, and you recall how I handled that.

I just threw the thing right on the table
and encouraged my people and Consumers' pecople to get
together as soon as possible.

Q I understand that. And perhaps I can tell
you that the reason why I am trying to probe these
things through you is we are faced with the situation
where staff counsel has indicated that you are the only
one here that we are able to talk to. Their position
is they are not going to allow us to talk to anybody

else, so that is why I am trying to probe all of this

through you.

(WGQi c&%umﬁuy and cﬁhunuuhs

Chicago, Jllinois ® 752-5087




L]

16

17

18

19

21

24

Well, let me ask a gquestion about that.

Has anyone ever conferred with you as to
whether Mr. Naidu should be produced for his
deposition?

A Mr. Paton asked me if I had any problem with
Mr. Naidu being interviewed or deposed by you people,
and I told him I didn't have any problem.

Q Well, one of the reasons why I am asking you
these kinds of guestions is not because I was not
aware of what you said or what went on. It is just,
for example, that the staff counsel have refused to
allow us to depose Mr. Naidu. That iSwhy I am asking
for all *hese particulars, because at least without
the board intervening, you are it as far as what we
are to == T am just telling you why I am asking you
those questions. Even though I understand how this
procedure worked, I have to get as much as I can from
you.

A I can only say that if you have to have
somebody from the staff, I'm probably the best guy you
could have, because I'm the guy who is going to make
the decision.

Q Okay. But I am just trying to explain why I

am trying to get these particulars.

(uéoi <Jauudhqg and Hssociates
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A As I told you -- and I can't recall what the
circumstances were, but -~ the prebriefing on the SALP
appreisal and problems was not a lengthy session
because of other problems going on in the office.

! Do you know any of the particulars with
regard to the Region 3 review of answers to Qu}ltion 23]
of the 50.54(f) questions and in particular why it took
80 long after those answers were submitted for them
to be reviewed?

A Is this the 50,54 (f) letter that was
submitted by Licensing or written by Licensing?

Q No. I am talking about the response to
Question 23, 1In other words, responses were submitted
by the licensee to Question 2] to Region 3, and then
it took a considerable amount of time before any
reviews commenced for those responses,

MR. JONES: Why do you mean by "considerable
amount of time"?

MR. ZAMARIN: That is what I am asking.

BY THE WITNESS:
A I have no input into it at all.
MR. JONES: I thought you had a date.

MR. ZAMARIN: I do. But my question was was he ==~
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BY THE WITNESS:

A I was not involved in that answer in any way. |

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

(1} Would the review of Question 23 and the
direction to do that have been within Mr. Fiorelli's
responsibility to oversee?

A The 50.54(f) letter was handled by the
licensing people, NRR, and they would have coordinated
with our staff to some degree on getting input in that
answer,

I guess Mr, Fiorelli would have been involved
in that coordination.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

[°) I see. The implementation of that review
would be up to Region 3, is that righe?

For example, my understanding was that
Question 23 had been given to someone at Region 3 for
review,

A I don't know. I am sure somebody can trace
that for you as to how it was handled, but I can't,

0 Does the NRC have a tracking system or method

of closing out open inspection findings?

|
|

|
|
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A Yes.

Q And can you describe generally or briefly
what that systemor method is?

A Well, there's really two types of tracking
systems., One is what we call the action item tracking
system, whiéh is a computerized tracking of actions
that are assigned from one NRC office to anothar or
within an NRC office and can even be used within a
region to track items that are -~ for which action has
beer requested. The handling of unresolved inspection
matters may be a part of this systen,

When I saild there's two methods, I guess I
would refer to the second methed as probably the
informal methed by which inspect rs keep track of their
wwn action items as they relate to inspection programs.
And that's some kind of a note~keeping system to
themselves, if you will.

Q Do you believe that there is any reluctance
on Consumers' part to include NRC requirements or codes
or standards in their QA programs when these things
are brought to their attention?

A I don't have a basis for such an observation,

MR. ZAMARIN: Excuse me a minute.

(WHEREUPON, there was a short

interruption.)
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BY MR. ZAMARIN:
o) I have what is tu be marked Exhibit No. 9 as
of today's date.
(WHEREUPON, said document was marked
CPCo Deposition Exhibit No. 9, for
identification, as of 1/16/81.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
o} It is the March 15, 1979 correspondence to
Consumers Power Company over your signature, and

attached to it is what is styled a presentation of

| investigat/on findings of the diesel generator

building, et cetera. And it is marked preliminary.
And I believe that this has been identified previocusly
L' discovery as a preliminary document to
Investigative Report 78-20.

On Page 11 of this exhibit, 9, it has == I
am going to draw a circle around a little thing to
direct your attention to it.

There is a statement that Consumers'
management " (Corporate Project Engineer and Manager)
were not properly informed of the Administration
Building settlement."

And this is referring to the administration

building grade beam failure which preceded the

-
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discovery of the other problem,

Were you ever made aware other than, perhaps,
reviewing that investigative report of any such
purported finding?

(WHEREUPON, the document was tendered
to the witnosi.)
BY THE WITNESS:

A I can't recall receiving input to this
finding as such. I do recall that in the course of our
review of this problem and the discussions on it with
the company that concern was expressed that there
should have been some forewarning of this problem as
a result of experiences with the administrative

building.
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

o) We discussed that at our previous session
as to whether there was an investigation and whether we
should have "taken a clue," I think were your words,
from the administrative building failure,

A But the question was to the statement that
they were not properly informed, I don't recall being
a party to any specific discussions on that.

('} Okay. I would like to know if -~ what you

consider to be the significance or

Wolfe, Kosenberg and HAssociates
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level of significance of that statement, if, in fact,
you consider there to be some significance to it, if
it were true,

A The significance I would attach to the
statement is that a problem was known or identified
with a nonia!oty-rolntod structure that conceivably

could have ramifications for safety-related structures

'nnd that the company was not informed of the problem,

& If, in fact, tlat statement is wrong, would
that affect any of the conclusions or findings in your
opinion that is contained in that exhibit, 97

. The finding on this particular page?

. Yes.

A Let me read them,

(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY THE WITNESS:

\ Let me ask this question, first, that when
you say 4if a statement were erroneous ==
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

v Yes.

A == in what way should I read it to be
erroneous, that they were informed?

[+) Yes, Lif that statement -~ my understanding

Wolfe, ¢ﬁauun‘|g'1uul =Y ssoalates
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of that statement -- and it has been testified -~ is
that that statement was based upon a conclusion that

the project manager, chat Mr., Keeley, was not aware

of the administration building grade beam failure untixi

after the unusual settlement in the diesel generator
building was observed, '

And when I say that that statement is wrong,
we know that it was wrong and have memoranda that
demonstrate that that conclusion is simply wrong.

A Okay. So you are asking me if the statement
read CPCo management was informed of the admin.
building sett . ement, would it change any of the
conclusions,

b} There was an impression, or there was a
significance that you stated to the finding in there
that they 4id not know about it, and I am really
trying to find out what the significarce of that error
in that report 4is, 4if that would change an impression
or change a conclusion or have any impact whatsocever
in your opinion or as relates to you.

A No, It wouldn't change the conclusions or
the findings as I read it, It might make me think

less of Mr., Keeley.

) Less of Mr, Xeeley in what regard?

|
|
!
|
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A In handling the job, because if he was aware

of the problem more, I guess I'd be concerned that he

SETLCI T S

didn't take more positive action,

Qo Well, I think that we discussed last time,
a couple of weeks ago, that you really weren't that
familiar with what action was taken after the
administration grade beam failure or the investigation
that was undertaken in order to determine whether it
was an isolated protiem or not, is that right?

A Yes. I guess the implication, though, that
I read into your question is that if Consumers Power
management pecple were aware of the adninistrative
building settlement and -~ it seems to me that the
situation makes the conclusions and findings worse, at
least in c=e sense, that it had management input inte
it at the expense of Aif it didn't have management input
into it,

0 Well, okay. I am not sure that I understood
what you are saying. It seems to me that you are
making that -~ somewhat in a vacuum,

Are you saying that if Consumers managenent
knew about it, that you would expect them to take some
kind of action, for exampie, to initiate an

investigation and to make some kind of a judgment as
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to whether it was a localized problem or not?

kY I'm just looking at the conclusicns and
findings on their face value and weighing them in
light of if management input was involved to reach
those same findings as oppused to no management
involved.

[+ Do you mean the conclusion that Consumers
did not adequately investigate the extent of the soil
deficiency in the class 1 fil1?

A Yes. I'm saying that if that's a finding,
taking that finding at face value, if that conclusion,
that same conclusion, is reached as a result of having
management input versus not having management input,
it doesn't speak well for the management.

"} You are taking as a fact that Consumers 4i4
not adequately investigate?

A Yes,

0 8o if, in fact, they did conduct an adequate
investigation and an investigation that was consistent
with goond principles, but the result of that
investigation came up with the finding that it was an
isolated problem and not one that extended throughout
the plant fill, would that then change the conclusion

that you have just stated?

Wolfe, ¢Manmdhq, and Hssociates
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A Yes.

o) Okay. Were you aware, by the way, that
borings were taken after the grade beam failure,
both in and around the administration building and at
other locations and that the remainder of the site was
checked for any manifestation of unusual settlement and
that the procedures with regard to the grade beam were
investigated before a determination was made, an
engineering determination was made that it was an

isolated situation and not one that extended throughout

the site?

A I don't recall getting any significant
briefing on the thing, and {f I was briefed, it was
Just 4in a passing way on that matter,.

0 And it was some time age, also, wasn't it?

A Yes. It's hard to == I think I'm ~= I guess |
the best way to say it is I'm aware of the conclusion
of our people in that regard, that they felt that the
matter of settlement of the administrative building
was probably some kind of a precursor in wmrms of
identification of the other problem. But I didn't
go into any detail on it,

") Okay. With regard to that, of course, the

thing that comes to mind is a discussion that we had

‘1@50&.'a&5uuqu, and =%ssociates
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last time, and that was there is a tendency to L¢ more
bottom line-oriented, that if a problem shows up, that
that indicates that there was some breakdown or some
deficiency earlier or some down the line, and I guess
it would be easy to say that if an investigation was
conducted and a conclusion was reached that it was an
isolated problem, and when we later find out (it was
not an isolated problem, it is easy to say that that
investigation was inadequate, even though it may have
been conducted at the time with good engineering
principles and so forth.

A That's a true statement,

Q% In your opinion has Consumers management
directed adequate attention to the root causes of the
deficiencies with recard to OA work?

A Could you repeat the question?

MR, ZAMARIN: Read the guestion,

(WHEREUPON, the record was read
by the reporter as requasted.)
BY THE WITNESS:

A I think that's been one of their weak points
in their quality assurarce program,
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

") In what way?

(Hhﬂh,‘dehunﬁﬁ, and Assoclates
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A Because of the time lapse that it seems to
take to solve the problem permanently.

I am thinking in terms of issues like the
Zack problem, issues like the prodlems with embedments,
that things kept occurring and recurring albeit they
were identified by Consumers Power. But the lasting
correction of the problem toock a long time,

") Are you aware of whether root causes and
root cause investigation are listed on the NCR's, the
Midland NCR's?

A I am not. My statement is based strictly on
the fact that problems seem to recur before they are
permanently corrected.

MR, ZTAMARIN: Okay. Why don't we take about five

minutes.

(WHERZUPON, a recess was had,)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

0 Okay. Do you recall when prior to the
middle of February, 1979, you were informed in any way
of what the investigation with regard to the soils
problem was doing?

I know that is a while ago, and I am picking
a specific point in time,

A I believe that the February 15th meme

Wolfe. cﬁﬁunﬂug and Hrscaiates
Chunge Jllineis @ 100 H089



L

204

-

sSuggests that we were conducting an investigation, so

I obviously was aware. I know what investigations are

being conducted.

Q Okay. And prior to the February 15th memo,
to your recollection, would ycu have also been aware
of what was being found or what the general findings
of the investigation were?

A Could I see the memo, again, the

February 15th memo?

o Sure. When I say "sure," %o the extent I
can find ie,
(WHEREUPON, there was a shors
interruption.)

BY THE WITNESS:

A I think I can answer the question easily it
1 see the nemo.
MR. ZAMARIN: Do you have the exhibits, Alan,
from last == I had them all elipped together.
(WHEREUPON, certain documents
were tendered to Mr. Zemarin,)
MR, ZAMARIN: Thank you.
I guess it was not an exhibit,
(WHEREUPON, there was a short

interruption,)

Wolfe, eNosunberg and Hrsociates
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(WHEREUPOYN, & certain document :

was tendered to the witness,)

BY THE WITNESS:

A This is February 15th, dsn't {t?

BY MR. ZAMARIN:
¢ Yes.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A I think the best way to answer that
question is to say that I had major invelvement and

input into this particular document, the

February 15th document., 8¢, obviocusly, I had some
information on the diesel generator bullding
settlement prodlem,

The way the memo was written suggests to me

that what we had at that time was some preliminary

information and that -~ but our investigation was octlx'
incomplete at the time, and, therefore, I didn't want |
to Araw AnY firm conclusions from At at that point,
Put, obviously, the way it's discussed here, I knew
something about the problems beforehand,

BY MR, ZAMARIN:

0 To your recollection, during the

Wolfs, eRosanberg and Hricstates
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investigation of the soils at Midland, were ynu aware
or informed of whether the investigators were looking
at the activities with respect to Canonie, who was
placing soils in the dike area, I bellevs?

A I don't recall.

[+ Te your knowledge 4id the investigation with
regard to the solils point out any problems about the
capabilitiec of U.8., Testing?

A Well, again, I'd have to g9 back to the
investigation report at this particular sime., I think
we got into some of this discuseion last time, and 1
guess I would like to characterize the situation as
being that I participated in the significant
managenant meetings with the company t¢ discuss tha
investigation findings, and all of those things were
aired at that time. And to the extent that that
particular problem was discussed, I would have been
avare of (e,

") Okay. Nas anyone ever indicated to you that
they believed that Consumers Power was withholding
Ainformation from the NRC with regard to the soils
Lasuen?

A Not that I reeall, We 414 look very
pointedly into whether or not the matter was reported

-
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in a timely manner and concluded that there were no |
reporting deficiencies associsted with that matter,

0 Dr you know whether anyone in Region 3 has
any thoughts with regard to the adequacy of the

proposed remedial action from a technical standpoint?

" On the solls foundation problem?

& VYes, |
A Yesn, I believe ve do have.
0 Can you tell me what your knowledge of those

thoughts {»?

A I'm avare that Mr, Gallagher and perhaps
Others within Region ) have some concerns over the
technical adequacy of the corrective action proposed
and implemented by Consumers Power Company.

They are working with the Licensing people
with respect to these matters. The responsibiliey
within NRC for the sdequacy of the site foundation
rests with NRR,

) When you refer to the licensing people, are
you referring to the people within NAR?

A Yos, and thelr consultants,

) T take Lt, then, from that answer that with
regard to particular concerns over xhe technical

adequacy of the proposed fixes that You we not familiar

“_‘
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with =--

A Specifics?

@ Yes.

A No. I am aware that the reason, to the
extent we are involved at all in :hle thing, is because
of Mr. Gallagher's and some of the other people's
expertise in this area.

Q To your knowledge &:d Region 3 review any
of the cost/benefit analysis in answers to the
50.54(f) questions?

A If we did, I'm not aware uf that.

0} In making management decisions, does
Region 3 evaluate cost versus benefit?

A The only time we would be involved in a
cest/bensfit-type of analysis is if we were asked to
participate by the NRR pecple.

Qe Participate in what?

A In such an evaluation by the NRR people.

Cur job in terms of an inspection program
is for assuring or verifying that the activities are
being conducted in accordance with the regulations,
and that dcesn't address cost/benefit relationships.

Q To your knowledge has any Region 3 personnel

ever expressed opinions that they did not like Bechtel

(MbQL cﬁ%umfug and Hssociates
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as a company?

A No, I don't think so. I don't think I've
ever heard a statement like that.

I have been personally very critical of
Bechtel throughout the years that I've been here, but
I've also beeren critical of a lot of other pecvle.
But it's always been related toward a specific problem
and the handling of that specific problem. I am not
aware of any deroacatorv-type statement made at a
company with no other basis other than the ccmpany =--
the nature of our work does require us to be critical
of activities, and I guess I would go so far as to say
in -- particu.arly in dealiings with Consumers Fower
Cormpany, I have been critical of -- used Bechtel in a
critical sense in that I have felt that they have been
a dominating force at the site or in connection with
the work many times.

e Have you ever been of the belief that
Bechtel, Ann Arbor office, has been uncooperative with
respect to the NRC or Region 3 in particular?

A I can't recall any instance that stands out
in my mind as being a case that bothered me, and,
certainly, if there were such a case, that it wasn't

of any significance that I remember it.
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Q Has anyone recently indicated to you that
they do not think that Consumers Power Company reports
matters pursuant to 50.55(e) as readily as they did
in the past?

A No.

Q What is Region 3's opinion as to the single
largest cause, primary cause, of the soils problem?

A I don't know whether 1'd be speaking for my
staff with this answer, but I'll give you my perscnal
view on it, and that is that the quality assurance
program related to the soils problem right from the
beginning was ineffective to assure that the soil
requirements were as they were stated to be in the
application.

That's a very broad answer, but it's, I
think, the gut issue involved.

Q As you sit here now, could you point to any
specific changes in the program that in your cpinion
would have eliminated or prevented those problems?

A I guess I'd have to think about that, but I
think the general impression I have had, right or
wrong, is that the soil foundation 4id not get the
same initial type of attention that other systems that

are known to be more readily associated with the
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safety of the plant cet,

For example, the civil work in terms of the
structures and the welding work and the electrical
work are all recognized 1is being areas that need a
strong guality assurance program, and they sort of
get it from the recognition that those are very
important systems.

I am not certain that right from the
beginning that anybody really recognized or paid
attention to the fact that there was this clear
possibility that *he soil was going to be that
critical an issue. I guess what I'm saying is that I
sort of got the impression that the soil aspects might
have been more taken for granted than the other areas.

o] Now, I have here a copy of the memorandum
and order in ALAB-106, and on Page 17 of that is the
statement that "the Board requests --" and then it
has some -- certain information, and they use the term
"staff." They are reguestinc that certain things be
done by the "staff," and they reference items,
numbered items that appear on the two preceding pages.

And I would like you to take a look at that,
and, if you can, tell me whether the reference there

to "staff" by the Appeals Board refers to Region 3, for

|
|
|
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example, or NRR, or whether ycu can even édraw such an
opinion.
(WHEREUPCN, the document was
tendered to the witness.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A You are talkinc about this area, here
(indicating)?
BY MR, ZAMARIN:
Qe Yes.
(WHEREUPON, there wa:s a short
interruption.)

BY THE WITNESS:

A Okay. 1I've read this.

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q Then my question was, when I read that, it

is somewhat general when it refers to requests that the

staff do certain things. And do you read that as
referring to Region 3 I & E or as to NRR, Region 3
Headgquarters, or do you really have a handle on what
they mean by that?

A I think a fair characterization when they
talk about "staff" is probably a ccordinated effort
between Region 3, the NRR neople, and the legal staff,

Q And would carrying out of Region 3's

(ubq& <dé&un5uy and c#ﬂuodahu
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responsibilities with recards to that effort, again,
be something that Caston Fiorelli would have
responsibility of taking care of?

A Yes.

I would add that Region 3 does not deal
directly with the boards without the knowledge of what
NRR or the legal staff is doing.

Q Okay. Wwhen you say you do not deal
directly with the boards without the knowledge of
what they are doing =--

A We wouldn't send anything directly to the
board from here without it going through Washington.
Q And it does not necessarily go through

I & E Headgquarters in Washington for --

A No. 1I'd think you'd have to go back and
leok at what arrangements were set up in terms of
dealing with these things at that particular time.

Q We went through a couple of weeks ago that
menorandum of that possible ex parte communication,
and I believe we had discussed what you would
consider to be technical errcrs in there. And what
comes to mind now as I sit here was one of them was
the statement that I & E had discovered the soil

settlement problem when, in fact, it was the licensee

——
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that had: and the other one, I recall, was the
statement that there had been no QA program with
respect to soils.

And I believe that you indicated that that
should have indicated that in your opinion there was
no effective QA preogram with reéard to scils.

I also note that, I believe, a copy of that
communication and memorandum had been provided to the

licensing board.

Do you believe that the licensing board --

in order to place your comments in proper perspective-~

should also have the benefit of your corrections as
you describe it to us?

X I would expect they will ask me it.

Q Okay. Actually, the reascn that I asked
that, I have been toying with the idea of somehow
finding some vehicle of informing them of your
explanation, now, and I have not come up with any wiy
to do that.

A Could I gec off the record a minute?

o Yes.

(WHEREUPON, discussion was had

off the record.)
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BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q Has anyone ever indicated to you that any
Region 3 inspectors may have taken a threatening
position with regard to Consumers Power, for example,
indicating that if they did not comply with an
inspector's deéision, that you would be told that the
Plant should not be licensed?

A I don't recall anything.

Let me just add that I'm the person
responsible for making the recommendation from Region 3
to my bosses in Washington with respect to licensing
action., The only so-called threat that I can recall
is the one that 1 made at the SALP hearing -- saLp
meeting in which 1 told Consumers Power representatives
that if their operation at Palisades didn't begin to

show some measureable improvement, that I would not

So if you want to call that a threat =--
4} That is not what I was referring to. But
let me ask you a question about that.
Are you then saying that irrespective of
that, the fact that there would be differing

operational procedures at two plants, the fact that

|
|
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Consumers Power Company is ultimately responsible for
the operation at Palisades, therefore the performance
would impact your decision as to whether to recommend
a license at Midland?

A I'm saying that the performance at the
Palisades plant suggests to me that Consumers may not
be zble to run the Midland plant with a hich degree

of gquality in the coperation and that -- and I viewed

the problems at Palisades as not strictly site-oriented

Q Okay. Can you tell me what you mean by
that?

A I see that -- I believe that the problems
are not necessarily restricted just to personnel
performance, but relate to the -- to issues broader
in the sense of procedural controls, communications
controls, quality cf people, 2nd so forth.

Q And when yo: say "quality of people," are
you referring to guality of people who are actually
involved in the hands-on operation cr quality of
people who should be initiating procedural controls?

A I thirnk both.

Q One more juestion before I pass out of this

area.

And when you refer to "procedural controls,"

»
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can you tell me what you mean by that?

A Could I go off the record a minute?

Q Sure.

(WHEREUPON, discussion was had
off the record.)

MR. ZAMARIN: Strike that last gquestion.

Just a second.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

Q Do you have any knowledge with respect to
in what frame of mind the alleged material false
statement in the FSAR was made?

By that I mean whether it was willful or
deceitful, for exanmple.

A Well, if we felt it was willful or
deceitful, we would have suggested that the matter be
referred to the Department of Justice. So we did not
feel there was an intention to deceive the NRC.

Q i have here an October 4, 1979 memo for you
from George Gower, and it has been previously marked
as Exhibit 13 at the deposition of Darl Hood on
October 8th, 1980.

I am going tc hand this to you and ask you

‘1@64&,4c&%uudh§9 and Hssociates
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ra question. So direct your attention to what the
sentence means -- actually, it is the last sentence in
the third paragraph.

(WHEREUPON, the document was

tendered to the witnes;.)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

v} Or at least to help you or me understand

what it means.

(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A Okay, Ron.
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q Okay. I need to see it 2gain to remember
what my gquestion was.
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to Mr. Zamacin.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q With regard to the statement in this letter
that says -- or this memorandum, it says:
"Based on the information Presented, we
do not believe that the four infractions to be

included in Appendix C meet the civil Penalty

(M60i cfanudkﬁg and cﬁk&mﬁah&
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criteria, and, therefore, would not carry
monetary penalties."”

And up above i+ talks about the three
appendices, Appendix A being related to the material
falee statement, Appendix B being a notice of imposed
civil penalties--and i assume that would be civil
penalties resulting from the Appendix A material false
statement--and Appendix C would be another Notice of
Violation specifying the four infractions found,.

And, I guess, really, what I am interested
in knowing is what the four infractions found refer to.
E Those are the items of noncompliance, I

believe, which you atgked me about earlier, And I

think you called them nine, but they were numbered

|1, 2, 3, and 4.

Those are those infractions that you
mentioned earlier when I discussed the nature of the
enforcement program and how we characterized the items
of aoncompliance. They are not the material false
statements,

] And I have here an October 29, 1979
memorandum for George Gower from you, subject, Midland-

recommended civil penalty, and this is marked as

Exhibit No. 10.

(WGQQ ¢Janudhqg and :ﬁhun&dzs
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(WHEREUPON, said document was

marked CPCo Devosition Exhibit No. 10,

for identification, as of

1/16/81.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

~Q And there is an attachment here with an

Appendix C, Notice o0f Violation. 1Is that the
Appendix C that is referred to in that October 4, 1979
letter, Hood Deposition Exhibit No. 13?7

(WHEREUPON, the document was

tendered to the witness.)

BY THE WITNESS:
A Yes.
BY MR, ZAMARIN:
Q Okay. Couid I see that a minute?
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to Mr. Zamarin,)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q What does X00S stand for?
A Executive Officer for Operations Support,
I think.
Q I notice that in this draft, Appendix C, it
refers to the four items as infractions. Now, is that

based upon the determination that if left unresolved,

(Tuﬂzg cﬁ%mudhﬁg and Hssociates
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these are matters which might lead to potential safety

| problems?

A Yes.

(WHEREUPON, a certain document was
marked CPCo Deposition Exhibit
No. 11, for identification, as of
1/16/81.)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:
e I have here what has been marked as
Exhibit No. 11 as of today's date. It is a
November 19, 1979 memo for Harold Thornburg from
Mr.. Shewmaker,
MR. JONES: Off the record.
MR. ZAMARIN: Off the recrd.
(WEEREUPON, discussion was had
off the record.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN: 4
Q I notice that you indicated on Page 2, which
has Meeting Notice Distribution -- I would like you to
take a look at that, and could you tell me, do you
recall, one, whether you .ttended that meeting, and,

two, what the occasion of the meeting was, .n other

words, the purpose.

(ubql c&%umﬁug and Hssociates
Chicage, Ollinois ® 752.8087



(]

10

11

13

4

15

16

18

19

2

8 B B

(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered tc the witness.)
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)

BY THE WITNESS:

o I believe this is the meeting notice that
is put out by our staff £or meetings, which was aimed
at the discussicns on the overall performance of the
Midland site. The second meeting that we'@ had and
this meeting, I believe, also, was the one which
eventually led or which led to the discussions that
focused on the diesel generator building settlement
problem, as to the action to be taken.

The purpose of the meeting, agalin, was to
review the series of problems overall and 4o determine
whether Region 3's actions in this regard were
acceptable or adeguate.

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

(1} When you say "Region 3's actions in this

regard," do you mean recommendation -~

A Yes.

Q -- for proposed action?

K8 Yes.

Qe Now, I notice that this is from

q@GQL 4ﬁ%um£¢g and =Fssociates
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Mr. Shewmaker. Why was he initiating this memorandunm,

or was he kind of running the show?

A I believe he was coordinating the activities,

MPR. ZAMARIN: Off the record.
(WHEREUPON, discussion was had

i cff the record.)

BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q I have here what has been marked
Exhibit No. 15, as of October 8, 1980, *he EHood
deposition, and it is a sheet of paper with six items
listed on it.

Ané@ I would like to show this to you and ask
you 1f you recall ever having seen that before.
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to the witness.)
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q Our recollection is that Mr. Hood testified
that he and Mr. Rubenstein had prepared that document,
so I will put it in context.

Do you recall ever having seen this before?

kS No. I'm familiar with many of the items in

there, though.

(thi cﬁ%umﬂug and —Hssociates
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0 Gocod, because I am coinao to ask you about a
couple of then,
In regard to the statement that in Mareh of
1979 "IE recommended to NRR that a show cause be
issued to stop construction," do you knoy who it was
within IE that made that recommendetion? |

A I'4a have to qo back to look at some of the
paperwork that was submitted to ¥Vashincton, but I
believe the basis for that recommendation cane fror
here, that we at least encouraged consideration of a
show cause as one possihility for dealing with this
problem,

o] Okay. And why was that? Does it relate %o
what vou described last time as your concern that if
construction, for example, continues to go on, that
there is some feeling that engineering judement might
be affected by the fact that it is continued?

A That certainly was a consideration.

Whether it was the total one or not, I don't know.
But I was bothered by the fact that there was no
position on the part of both the company and on the
part of the staff that whatever was coing ¢o be done

was coing to be an acceptable solution to the

problem,

(Méa% <Jan¢n5ug and Hssociates
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Q It indicates on here that it was agreed by
NRR and IE that 50.54(f) as opposed to a show cause
to stop construction would be sufficient.

Do you know why it was agreed that that would

be sufficient rather than stopping construction?

| A No. I'm surc‘thdt decision was discussed
!botween the IE staff back there and the NRR,
Could I ask a gquestion of Mr. Jones?
> Sure, you can.
(WHEREUPCN, discussion was had

off the record.)

BY THE WITNESS:

A Let me say that I believe, but I'm not
certain of this, that a consideration associated with
the 50.54(f) approach was to stay out of a hearing.
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

o} Okay. The consideration of a show cause to
stop construction, was that to stop construction only
with regard to soils foundation?

A Yes.
. 8 Down in Item 6 it says, "IE now raises
question as to the acceptability of the design fix --*
was it your understanding that prior to the time of

this memorandum, that IE did not ralse any question a.

‘1?80&..$§5uu4hﬁ9 and =Fssociates
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to éhe acceptability of the fix?

K No. That has always been an issue, and I
think it focused on a difference of perspective in
terms of the relative importance of certain aspects
as viewed by the staff,

) bkay. T+ refers here to =-- there is a
reference at the top that 50.54(f) was sent O
Consumers Power in March of 1979, and down in Item 6
it says, "I. a mee:ing on November 28 -=" d0 you know
if that November 28 refers to 19797

A Yes. 1It's that same meeting notice that you

referred to before.

(v} Well, for the first time we have been able
to put this together with scmething. So this
Exhibit No. 15 from the Hood deposition, to the best
of your recollection, goes together with what we had
just marked as Exhibit No. 1l of this deposition, and
that is the forthcoming meeting, that I do see it
refers to a November 28 meeting, and that is what the
referenze in Item 6 here is, that November 28 meeting.

A Yes.

e I guess what I wonder about is it says that
“IE developed a new position," and that it "now ralises

the guestion ~--" and do you know how that differed frem

“Woffc, cﬁamﬂng and =Fssosiates
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any old position and what it used to raise?

A what it refers to -- and if you go back to
our previous conversations -- we had made the
recommendation for issuance of the civil penalty on
the material false statements case. The technical
adequacy of the soils foundation problem, that
responsibility rested with XNRR.

when we met with our management back there
to discuss the assessments of the Midland site and the
impact of the scils problem, my boss, Mr., Stello,
wanted to focus back on the adeguacy of the technical
aspnéts of this problem rather than on the civil
penalty consideraticn, which, going back in time, was
the same concerns we had flagged earlier, and that was
going back to why we had recommended consideration of
issuance of a show cause order.

Here it was in December, and the staff still
had no better sppreciation for whether or not the
actions being taken and propcsed by Consumers Power
Company were guing to be acceptable.

Q In the statement under Item 6 on this
exhibit, 15, from Darl Hood's depecsition, "In a
meeting on November 28, IE developed a new position,”

and, under a, "Ove:rall QA performance acceptable

('Wolyt. cﬁoun['ug and =Fssociates
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because it identifies OA deficiencies," was that
a new position, or had that been the position
all along?

A That had been my position throughout., While
I had a number of specific concerns with the QA
prooram, the hotton line was as stated +here,

Q And is that bottom line also shared by IF
headouarters in Washinaton, to your knowledge?

A Yes.

Q Who is it that has the ultimate
responsibility for determining whether the staff would
have reasonable assurance that the QA progran with
recard to remedial fixes for the soils foundation
problems would be done in a fashion so as not to be a
dancer to the health and safety of the public?

A I guess I'm not sure I really understand what
you are gettinc at., Perhaps if I offer some thoughts
on the subject, it might help.

The NRC is to take any such action in terms
of an issuance of an order or anvthing that involves ar
escalated enforcement action to accomplish a protection
of the public health and safety. That would be dene
by the director of I & E or the director of MRR or by

the Commission itself, if they so chose.

QVa[fc. cfounﬁug and =Fisociates
Chicage. Jllines ® 762.8087



10

11

12

13

14

15

i6

17

18

19

L8]
o
0

I'm not sure that's the question you asked
me, however.

Q Okay. I guess the bottom line of what I am
trying to get to is whether the staff has reasonable
assurance that the affected safety-related portions »f
the Midland facility that are :d have remedial fixes
done to them will be constructed in such a way that it
would be without undue risk to the health and safety
of the public; and if they do not have that reasonable
assurance, who is the individual that makes that
decision?

A The quality assurance aspects cf it or the
technical aspects of it?

Q For the purposes of this question, we are
assuming that the technical aspects -- some decision is
reached somehow on acceptable technical fix, and now
we get to the question of how that assurance will be
implemented.

A I think it rests with me,

Qe I asked you a moment ago with regard to the
statement in Hood Exhibit 15 that "Overall QA
performance acceptable because i+ identifies QA
deficiencies,” and I asked if that was also the bottom

line for IE headgquarters. You indicated it was.

‘1080&,‘=ﬁ%sudagg and =Fisociates
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for NRR QAB?

A I believe so. They certainly were at the
meeting in which we discussed this, and I believe they
accepted our bottom line position.

Q .And the meeting you refer to is that
November 28, 1979 meeting?

A That's correct. And that, again, was =-- one
of the purposes of that meeting was to discuss the

problems, not only the soils problem, but all of the

problems collectively, to determine that the support .

that the Region 3 positions taken on this matter were
shared by the people in washington.
o] Okay. I have here a memo dated March 5, 1980
from you to Harold Thornburg suggesting that a
memorandum be sent to the Commission encouraging that
the hearing relating to soils foundations be expedited.
Do you know whether such a meme was ever
sent to the Commission?
Do you want to see this?
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to the witness.)
(WHEREUPON, there was a short

interruption.)

!
i
1
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BY THE WITNESS:

A I don't know, but I don't believe so.

BY MR, ZAMARIN:

Qe Okay.
A Do you == .
a You have never seen one, so I take it, then,

since you are not sure that any one was, you would not |

be aware of any reason why one was not sent, if it was

nct sent.
A No.
MR. ZAMARIN: This is a good place to break.
We will break for lunch., It is twenty-five after
12:00, How about 1:157?
(YHEREUPON, the deposition was
recessed until 1:15 p.m, this

date, January 16, 1981.)

Volfe, a&%umﬁug and =Frsociates
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATCRY COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF: ) Docket Nos. 50-329-0L

) 50-330-0L

CONSUMERS POWER ) 50-329-0M

COMPANY ) 50-330-0M
(Midland Plant, )
Units 1 & 2) )

January 16, 1981,
1:30 p.m.
The deposition of JAMES GEORGE KEPPLER,
resumed pursuant to recess, at Nuclear Regulatory
Commission Region No. 3, 799 Roosevelt Road, Glen

Ellyn, Illinois.

PRESENT:

MESSRS. ISHAM, LINCOLN & SEALE,
(One First National Plaza,
Chicago, Illinois 60603), by:
MR. RONALD G, ZAMARIN and

MR. ALAN S. FARNELL,

appeared on behalf of the Consumers
Power Company:;

MR. BRADLEY JONES,

(United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washingten, D.C, 20555),

appeared on behalf of the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission,

ALSO PRESENT:

MR. GILBERT S. KEELEY,
MR. BENJAMIN W. MARGUGLIO,
Consumers Power Company;
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ALSO PRESENT (CONTINUED):

MR, EUGENE J. GALLAGHER,
Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

REPORTED BY: ANTOINETTE M. HAYNES, C.S.R.
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JAMES GEORGE KEPPLER,
called as a witness herein, having been previously duly
sworn and having testified, was examined and testified
further as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

[} I have here a copy of that December 14, 1978
letter that you wrote to M ron Cherry in response to
his claims about the :esident inspector at Midland,
and I note that on the =-=- tLhere really is not any need
f.r the background. I am not going to ask much
substance to this,

I just note that on the second page of this
letter in someone's handwriting, "ELD concurrence DYy
telephone === Olmstead," "RCI concurrence by
telephone -=-- Thornburg."

Iy that your handwriting?

s That's Mr, Norelius's handwriting. No.

Wait a minute., I take that back. It is my
handwriting.

[+ Am I correct in understanding that
Mr, Olmstead and Mr. Thornburg both
were consulted with regards to the substance of that

lettar?

A Yes.

|
|
l
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I\ And they both concurred with the statements
therein?
A Yes.

MR. ZAMARIN: Off the record,. .
(WHEREUPON, cdiscussion was had
off the record,)
(WHFREUPON, a certain document was
marked CPCo Deposition Fxhibit YNeo. 12,
for identification, as of 1/16/81.)
BY MR, ZAMARIM:

Q Okay. I have here a January 11, 1979
memorandum for W. A, Hansen from D, W, Hayes, The
subdect is "Peview 2nd Fvaluation Material Submitted
per ALAB 176 Condition 4."

It states here that:

"As I understand, thae nonconformance
reports and other materials submitted by
Consumers Power Company in accordance with
Condition 4 of ALAP Order 106 have not been
formally reviewed and evaluated since
August, 1976."

And it goes on to state that Mr, Hayes sces

"“1itetle value, in terms of recuired effort, in trying
to fully backfit these reviews."

Do you know what he means by "backfit these

reviews"?

Wolfe. dlau‘u5ﬂg and Associates
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A I think he means try to go back and review

the ones that weren't done, but I have not read that
memo, SO ==

Q Okay.

(WEEREUPCN, there was a short
interruption.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
| Q Okay. In here it is also stated that
inspectors, NRC inspectors, "routinely review and
evaluate audit findings and NCR's at the site for
proper corrective action including trend analysis --"
!now, is that a trend analysis that is performed by
;the NRC !nspectors to which he refers?
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to the witness.)
BY THE WITNESS:

A Yes. What he means by "trend analysis" is

an at2lysis for any adverse trends performed by the

licensees,
BY MR. TAMARIN:
Q So your understanding is --

A That's the way I would read that memo, and

that's my understanding of what we do.

Qe And that is also your understanding of what

(‘“/a[fz, c?aunﬁng and =Fssociate:
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you had done, say, between 1976 and 1979, the period

covered in that memo?

A You are asking me if that's what this meno
says? . |

Q No. 1If that ie your understanding of what --

ke I didn't have any understanding of what we

were doing in terms of how much. I knew ocur program
called for a periodic review of nonconformance reports
and licensees' actions with respect to these reports,
but you wi'l recall you asked me in connecticn with the
ALAB order as to how much we did on this and who was
responsible for it, and that would have been handled

by the branch, Mr. Fiorelli.

Q And, really, what I was asking here is with
regard to doing this trend analysis, your understanding
is that this trend analysis was done by Region 3,
for example, from 1976 through 1979. I mean, this is
not something new, is it? Trend analysis --

A No.

Q Is it a correct statement to say that there
is a difference between a construction permit-type
review and an operating license-type review from the
viewpoint of the NRC?

A Yes,

(“’o[fz, c&’ounﬁug and =Fssociates
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Q And the type of review that would be
associated with the proposed fixes for the soils
foundation problems at Midland would be a construction
permit-type review in your opinion?

A I don't know how I'd characterize it in ternms
of whether it would be a construction permit review
or an operating license review. My feeling is that a
problem of this nature that carries with it some
design consideration is different from that which was
proposed in the construction permit and which was
reviewad by the staff as being a design consideration
that was acceptable.

My feeling is that that kind of difference
or problem area should be resclved as early as
possible, I don't know whether I'm dancing around the
issue.

Q I am not sure how that really fits into how
that is more like a construction permit, again, or
more like a --

A I guess if I had to distinguish one way or
the other, I think it should be handled as a
construction permit review, yes,

I think -- let me add that I think one of

the purposes behind a two-stage licensing proceeding

(HQQL c&%umﬁug amd::4uaaau:
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such as the NRC has is so that if there are issues
that are developed with a completecd plant, that glant
doesn't automatically go into cperation with a
potential safety problem or an unreviewed question
existing.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
BY MR, ZAMARIN:

Q On Page 2 of the December 6th order, in the
first complete paragraph on the page, is a statement
that =-- and this was with regard to the purported
material false statement in the FSAR -- it says:

"This statement is material in that this

portion of the FSAR would have been found

unacceptable without further staff analysis

and questions i{f the staff had kxnown that

Category I structures had been placed in fact

on randon £1ill rather than controlled compacted

cohesive £ill as stated in the FSAR."

Could you tell me the basis for the
statement, if you know, that the staff would have
asked further questions and it would have found
unacceptable without those further questions --

A Which part are you reading from here?

(n/o[ft, d?ounl:ug and =Fssociates
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Q I think it is the last =-- here we go. It
starts right there, somewhere (indicating).

A What is the question?

Q In general whether you are aware of what the
basis of the sﬁatement that the staff would have
asked further questions is.

A I assume the basis came from NRR, because
they were the people that reviewed whether the
statements in fact did involve a material false
statement. So that £finding was theirs.

Q Is it your understanding tlhat that is from

a technical viewpoint as opposed to a QA viewpoint,

for example?

A Yes.,

Q In your opinion is there any difference,
from a QA viewpoint, between the ongoing construction
activities at the Midland site and the construction
activities that would be involved in implementing any
fix with regard to the soils foundation once a fix is
technically accepted?

A The only major difference that I can see is
that there were clear problems with the gquality
assurance program as they related to the soils work

initially and that I would want to make sure that

(l'/a[fz. :ﬂ’ounf:ug and G4uociatz:
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those deficiencies had been corrected so that further
work in that area -- that I had assurance that it
woulid receive ﬁroper management attention, quality
assurance attention.
Q When you say "further work in that area,"
are you referring to the soils placement area?
A Yes,
Q There is cne thing I forgot to do.
(WHEREUPON, a certain document
was marked CPCo Deposition
Exhibit No. 13, for identification,
as of January 16, 1981.)
BY MR. ZAMARIN:
Q I have here what I have marked as
Exhibit 13 as of today's date, and 1 just want to show
You that., And I believe that this i{s a copy of the
biographical information that you provided to us, is
that correct?
(WHEREUPON, the document was

tendered to the witness,)

BY THE WITNESS:
A Yes, it is.

(WHEREUPON, there was a short

interruption.)

Q‘Vo[fz, cﬁomﬁug and c:41.wciatu
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EY MR. TAMARIN:

e On Page 3 of the December 6th ordes, in the
third line from the bottom, it indicates that without
resolution of certain issues, "the staff does not have
reasonable assurance that the affected safety-related
pertions of the Midland facility will be constructed
and operated without undue risk to the health and
safety of the public.”

Can you tell me what your understanding of
the phrase "reasonable assurance" is?
(WHEREUPON, the document was
tendered to the witness.)
BY THE WITNESS:

A "Reasonable assurance" as used in this
particular sentence, I believe, is intended to convey
the thought that the staff did not have sufficient
information to make a conclusion that the actions
proposed by Consumers Power Company with respect to
the soils foundation problem were adequate to assure
that further differential settlement problems may not
exist, and on that basis that such settlement could
conceivably affect both safety-related systems and
structures, that they lacked confidence that a safety

problem would not exist if the facility were
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constructed that way.
BY MR. ZAMARIN:

Q We have touched, really, on what I am
trying to learn, and that iswhen you say "reasonable
assurance” I take it that connotes something less than
absolute certainty.

A Yes.

Q And what I am really trying to get to is
where between having a nere suspicion and having
absclute certainty that falls, and can you somehow

help me on that?

A Obviously there is a subijective

consideration involved. But I think the theought behind|

it is %hat people of a common technical backgrecund
applying due conservatism to an issue would conclude
that the risks are very small or unlikely %o occur if
the acticn were to allowed to go to completion.

Q Would that, then, in your opinion be the
same as, I suppose, if an engineer were reviewing
plans for the foundation of this building that we are
sitting in, he needs to be reasonably assured that
that foundation is goling to be adeguate, or does it
indicate some:hing more or something less than that?

A I think the intent is basically the same.

(“/olyz, .r?ounl:u’ and =%ssociates
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But, obviously, the safety concerns for a nuclear
power plant dictate considerably more conservatism

than, perhaps, the same concerns for this particular

puilding.

Q I hope all of the tenants in here are aware
of that.

A The basic intent is the same. But what may

constitute reasonable assurance -- that really gets
into the interded safety function that it has to
perform, I think one locks at the combinations of

the consequences plus the risk.

e Okay.
X Or the probability and the risk.
e It seems to me that what you are doing is

you are gcing away somewhat from reasonable assurance.

In other words, the reasonable assurance =-=-

A Well, I think it all ties together to some
degree.
Q Okay. Let me see 1f I have got it.

With regard to the reasonable assurance that

a designer, a reviewer with regard to plans for a
structure such as we are sitting in %oday would have,

for example, are you saying that because of the safety

considerations associated with a nuclear power plant,

QVo[fc, cpounl:uj and =Fssociates
Chicage, Jllino. ® 752.5087




o
&
w

that there would be more factors that would be

considered with regard to which he would have to have

reasonable assurance, or that reasonable assurance has

to move closer to certainty, that there is more than
just expertised good engineering judgment that is
required when you are talking about a nuclear plant?

A I am saying more the former, that to obtain
reasonable assurance for this building might be =much
less complicated than to obtain {(t =--

Q But that is not to say that the reasonable

assurance for that engineer is closer to certaintcy.

It is just that he has other factors.
(WHEREUPON, there was a short
interruption.)
MR. ZAMARIN: I do not have anything furcher,

MR, JONES: I guess by agreement of parties you

will Xerox the exhibits and forward them to us.
I have no questions.

MR. ZAMARIN: Signature reserved.

FURTHER DEPONENT SAITH NOT.

|

|
)
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UNITED STATES:- OF AMERICA
. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF: Docket Nos. 50-329-0L

)
) 50-330-0L

CONSUMERS POWER ) 50-329-0M

COMPANY ) 50-330~-0M

(Midland Plant, )

Units 1 & 2) )

I hereby certify that I have read the
foregoing transcript of my daposition given at the
time and place aforesaid, consisting of Pages 1 to 245,
inclusive, and I do again subscribe and make cath that
the same i{s a true, correct and complete transcript of

my deposition so given as aforesaid, and includes

changes, i{f any, so made by me.

JAMES GEORGE KEPPLER

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO
before me this day

of —» A.D,1981,

Notary Public
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )

) 88:
COUNTY OF C © 0 K )

I, ANTOINETTE M. HAYNES, a Notary Public
within and for the County of Cook, State ©f Illinois,
and a Certified Shorthand Reporter of said state, do
hereby certify:

That previous to the commencement of the
examination of JAMES GEORGE KEPPLER, he was gizst
duly sworn to testify the whole truth concerning the

matters herein;

That the foregoing deposition transcript was
reported stenographically by me, was thereafter
reduced to typewriting under my personal direction, and
constitutes a true record of the testimony given ana

the proceedings had;

That the said deposition was taken before

me at the time and place specified;

That the reading and signing of said
deposition was not waived;

That I am not a relative of, or employee or
attorney or counsel for, any of the parties, nor a
relativa or employee of any attorney or counsel for
ny of the parties hereto, nor interested directly or

indirectly in the cutcome of this action.

!
|
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!
|
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do hereunto set ny

hand ard affix my seal of office at Chicago, Illinois,

this 27th day of January, A.D. 1981.

Notary Public, Cook County, %g;inoi-

My commission expires March 12, 1984,

C.S.R, Certificate No. 84-2258,
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